

Salt Spring Island Housing Action Program Task Force Meeting Minutes

Date: Thursday, November 4, 2021

Location: Mahon Hall

166 Lower Ganges Road, Salt Spring Island

Members Present: Rhonan Heitzmann, Chair

Stanley Shapiro
Daniel Wood
Jessica Terezakis
Nejmah Guermoudi
Kerrie Proulx, Vice Chair

Regrets: Maïkan Bordeleau

Yvonne Saunders

Absent: Bryce Chapman

Staff Present: Jenn Baddeley, Recorder

Geordie Gordon, Planner 2 Louisa Garbo, Island Planner

Others Present: Laura Patrick, Local Trustee

Peter Grove, Local Trustee

These minutes follow the order of the agenda although the sequence may have varied.

The meeting was called to order at 10:09 a.m. Chair Heitzmann welcomed the Task Force members and acknowledged the meeting is being held in Coast Salish First Nations treaty and traditional territory. Chair Heitzmann proceeded with a roll call.

1. CALL TO ORDER

1.1 Approval of Agenda

By general consent, the Housing Action Program Task Force adopted the agenda.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

2.1 Approval of Draft Minutes for October 20, 2021

By general consent, the minutes of the October 20, 2021 Housing Action Program Task Force meeting were adopted.

3. ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE

3.1 Options to Amend LUB Section 3.17

Planner Gordon presented a Staff Memorandum on options to amend the Land Use Bylaw (LUB) Section 3.17. Proposed changes would allow large farm operations to utilize subdivision potential to allow for more density.

There was general discussion regarding the potential impacts from the amendments.

There was a question regarding secondary suites. Staff referred to the LUB, which includes secondary suites and Schedule I of the LUB, Secondary Suites Map.

By general consent, the Housing Action Program Task Force received the report for information.

3.2 Tiny Home Village Pilot Project

Planner Garbo presented on the Tiny Home Village Pilot Project.

There was a question regarding the Pilot Project process and if a proponent would be required. Staff responded that no proponent was needed.

Planner Garbo stated that this pilot project is the beginning of many similar projects and presents a learning opportunity.

Member Guermoudi arrived at the meeting at 10:23 a.m.

There was a question regarding the definition of a tiny home in the context of the pilot project. Staff answered that a tiny home would be a maximum of 500 square feet.

There was a question regarding the number of proponents involved and if there will only be one project. Staff answered that there is currently only enough resources to support one development at this time.

There was a question if there will be a cost to the proponent. Staff answered that yes, the developer will have to pay all costs and Islands Trust will not be subsidizing the development. Islands Trust will help streamline the process for rezoning, if required.

There was a question why the tiny homes would be built at 500 square feet. Staff responded that the 500 square feet measurement is universal and there needs to be a threshold for the first project. Staff also noted that the 500 square feet requirement wouldn't be put in place for the whole island, just for this one project.

There was concern regarding how small the homes would be. There was further conversation regarding the size of the proposed tiny homes.

There was a question if some visual designs of 500 square feet tiny homes could be presented to the Housing Action Program Task Force. Staff responded that they could provide some videos of designs for similar housing.

Two questions were raised:

- If the tiny homes are rented out, is there a way to ensure the rent remained affordable?
- Will there will be requirements in place to prevent these homes being used for Airbnb?

Staff responded that there are mechanisms, such as housing agreements, to prevent homes from being rented at too high a rate. Staff mentioned that there are limited resources for monitoring housing agreements for compliance though. For the second question, staff responded that there isn't a direct way to prevent Airbnbs, but that there would be a strata in place for the project.

A question was raised whether there could be a mix of sizes for the tiny homes, from 500 to 900 square feet. Staff responded that as this is the pilot project, there is a need to keep the homes small so that the project can be manageable and ultimately successful.

There was a comment made that there will be an increase in need for housing for hard-to-home people come January 2022.

There was further conversation regarding the affordability of rentals if the tiny homes end up being rented out.

A question was raised as to why there is only one project being implemented at this point, especially when there is such an urgent need for housing. Staff responded that there is not enough resources at this point to implement more than one project at a time.

It was MOVED and SECONDED,

That the Housing Action Program Task Force recommend the Salt Spring Local Trust Committee proceed with the proposed Tiny Homes Village Pilot Project.

CARRIED

There was a proposal that the topic of lower income housing be discussed at the next meeting.

3.3 Review of Official Community Plan (OCP)

Planner Garbo presented on the need to review the OCP and update it in relation to the Local Trust Committee's initiatives and the proposed Islands Trust Policy Statement.

Planner Garbo has asked for volunteers to review the OCP.

A comment was made that the Housing Action Program Task Force is already reviewing the Matrix.

Staff proposed that reviews could be made on sections in the OCP not found in the Matrix.

Volunteers include Members Shapiro, Terezakis, Guermoudi, and Chair Heitzmann.

There was a suggestion that a spreadsheet on the OCP sections be shared so that members can identify which sections they are able to talk to.

There was a suggestion that the volunteers meet together before branching off into individual groups.

Staff stated they will provide updates at each Housing Action Program Task Force meeting on the OCP review to provide transparency.

4. PRESENTATION

4.1 Mairi Welman – Public Engagement

Mairi Welman provided the Task Force with a presentation entitled "Public Engagement Guide". The presentation concerned effective public engagement strategies.

There was general discussion regarding the presentation and how to implement effective public engagement on Salt Spring Island.

Staff proposed the public engagement technique of 'Coffee with a Planner'.

There was a question whether the members of the Housing Action Program Task Force could put forward initial communications to the public regarding housing initiatives and recommendations. Staff responded that it is too early for this step yet, but once the initiative has been approved by the Local Trust Committee, staff will work with members to start releasing statements.

There was general discussion regarding public communications.

There was a question whether Planner Garbo could inform the Housing Action Program Task Force when it would be appropriate for the Task Force to make a statement of rationale. Planner Garbo confirmed that the Task Force will know when a statement can be made.

There was a proposal to review the Public Engagement Plan at the next meeting, which is a roundtable.

There was general discussion regarding the survey.

It was MOVED and SECONDED,

That the Housing Action Program Task Force requests staff to start the Coffee with a Planner Program.

CARRIED

There was general discussion regarding the diagram, "The Six Levels of Public Engagement" on pages 6 and 7, from the Public Engagement Guide presented by Mairi Welman.

5. OTHER BUSINESS

5.1 Public Engagement – survey, webpage and activities

Not addressed due to lack of time.

5.2 Housing Authority

Not addressed due to lack of time.

6. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 12:12 p.m.

Rhonan Heitzmann, Chair

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

Jenn Baddeley, Recorder